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DESCRIPTION

The Uptown Square Historic District of Chicago lies just west of Lake Michigan in the
neighborhood of Uptown, approximately six miles north of the downtown Loop. The district’s
collection of 52 buildings and one structure includes a range of significant architecture reflecting the
period of significance from 1900 to 1950, including turn-of-the-century storefronts with apartments,
grand Spanish Baroque and Moorish entertainment facilities, Classical Revival terra cotta-clad office
buildings, an Art Deco post office, and Art Deco and Venetian Gothic apartment hotels. The district
is distinguished from its surroundings by its architecture, its scale, and its organization as a cohesive
commercial and entertainment district. - While there are numerous buildings with commercial
storefronts on surrounding streets such as Sheridan Road and Wilson Avenue, these buildings are
not part of a cohesive commercial district and are of a much smaller scale than the majority of
buildings within the Uptown Square Historic District. The district’s 52 buildings are constructed
primarily of brick, terra cotta and limestone. The clevated rail line runs north and south through the
center of the district between Broadway and Winthrop. Much of the streetscape on Broadway is
densely built, with the larger buildings covering one-half block on Lawrence Avenue. Many of the
smaller buildings share a party wall and are constructed at the front property line.

The district’s boundaries include the northwest corner of Gunnison and Broadway. the cast
and west sides of Broadway from Gunnison on the north to Wilson on the south, the southwest
corner of Wilson and Broadway, the one building on the north side of Wilson east of Broadway, the
north side of Leland between Broadway and Winthrop, the north and south sides of Lawrence from
Magpnolia to Sheridan, the first building on the west side of Sheridan south of Lawrence, the two
butldings east of Sheridan on the south side of Lawrence, and the three buildings on the west side
of Racine south of Lawrence. The boundaries incorporate approximately 15 blocks.

The majority of the taller butldings are located on Lawrence Avenue between Sheridan and
Broadway. Buildings with a larper mass and scale include the Uptown Theatre at 4814-4816 North
Broadway (#44), the McJunkin Building at 4520-4570 North Broadway (#36), the Aragon Ballroom
at 1100-1T110 West Lawrence (#13), the Uptown National I3ank at 4753 North Broadway (#19), the
New Lawrence Hotel at 1020 West Lawrence (#9), the Mutual Insurance Building at [001-1015
West Lawrence (#4), the Wilton Hotel at 1039-1053 West Lawrence (#6), and the Peoples Church
at 941 West Tawrence (#2). The four tracks of the Elevated train line cross over Broadway at Leland
and over Lawrence between Broadway and Winthrop, with a station at the northwest cormer of
Wilson and Broadway and a station on Lawrence between Clifion and Winthrop. The Lawrence
station 1s comprised merely of turnstifes and a staircase to the platform enclosed by a chain link
fence. The elevated structure is of steel {rame construction south of Leland Avenue: north of Leland
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it becomes walled fill.

The district’s buildings retain a high degree of architectural integrity and retain the character
that was prevalent during the period of 1900 to 1950. The most substantial building changes have
occurred on the street-level retail storefronts. Often the changes were to windows, doors, cladding
and even alterations to the original storefront configuration. Despite a high degree of integnity, there
arc several vacant lots where buildings from the period of significance once stood. The buildings
that no longer remain include two early gas stations, a row of garages east of Clifton, a sewage
pumping station on Lawrence, two tun of the century low-rise residential buildings with commercial
storefronts on Lawrence, an early 6-flat apariment building on Lawrence, and a mid-1920s
commercial arcade on Broadway directly south of the Uptown National Bank building,

The commercial prominence of the district was represented by lavish office and retail
buildings, often clad ostentatiously in terra cotta, such as the Uptown National Bank Building (#19).
the Mutual Insurance Building (#4), the Loren Miller & Company Store at 4720-4726 North
Broadway (#40), the Uptown Broadway Building at 4703-4715 North Broadway (#20), and the
MecJunkin Building (#36). [n response to Uptown Square’s emergence as a center of nightlife in the
19205 and its proximity to a large concentration of shopping, business, transportation and
entertainment, farge apartment hotels replaced the smaller three-story apartment butldings, such as
the New Lawrence Hotel (#9) and the Wilton Hotel (#6).

The McJunkin Building (#36} is a three-story brick building with an ornate white terra cotta
facade at the southwest corner of Wilson and Broadway. This massive building, constructed in 1923,
1s designed in the Classical Revival style and commands a full city block. The building is curved
at the corner, and includes ten extruding bays with rusticated terra cotta blocks, two two-story lonic
pilasters in three of the bays, a dentillated terra cotta cornice and omamented terra cotla parapet. The
buiiding includes first floor commercial storefronts and the upper floors contain 108 windows facing
the streets.

The 1000 block of West Wilson incorporates one huilding within the district on the north
side of the street. The Wilson Avenue Theater at 1050 West Wilson (#35) was constructed in 1909
as a two-story brick building clad in Bedford limestone. The Classical Revival style facade includes
a central arched entryway surrounded by a flat stone wall, flanked by massive rusticated stone plers
topped by @ stone pediment with coats-of-arms. A pointed temple-front parapet with classical
ornamentatton tops the central section. The central arched entryway has been modified with the
installation ot a glass wall, and a one-story addition has been constructed 10 the cast.

The northwest corner of Wilson and Broadway has been the central nexus for transportation
i Uptown since 1900, The Wilson Avenue Elevated - Uptown Station al 4600-4620 North
Broadway (#37) was constructed in 1922 as a replacement for the previous station and arcade. The
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one-story building built partially beneath the elevated tracks is clad in rusticated limestone and
detailed in the Classical Revival style. The original entrance and arched stone parapet on the corner
have been removed. The building has four commercial storefronts along Broadway and two along
Wilson.

The 4600 block of North Broadway contains one to three story buildings with commercial
storefronts and apartments above. The majority of these buildings were constructed between 1900
and 1915 and represent the carly phase of commercial development in the district. Characteristics
of the early period include a smaller massing and scale, with buildings that arc generally one ta three
stories in height. Many of these buildings are constructed of brick in the Commercial Style and are
not ornately detailed. Several notable exceptions include 4653 North Broadway (#23), a brick, terra
cotta and limestone building constructed in 1901 in the Classical Revival style; 4629 North
Broadway {#29), a brick and terra cotta building constructed in 1930 in the Art Deco style; and 4623
4627 North Broadway (#30), a glazed brick and terra cotta building constructed in 1916 in the
Commercial Style with Sullivanesque detailing. The buildings often incorporate apariments above
commercial storefronts.

The district incorporates one buiiding within the 1100 block of West Leland. The Monroe
Bullding at 1100-1116 West Leland (#52) is a three-story brick commercial and residential buitding
constructed in 1905 with a 1922 addition. The building is constructed in the Commercial Style and
includes terra cotta storefront surrounds topped by classical urns, five two-story bays with brick
quomns topped by wood cornices on Leland and three on Winthrop, and an overhanging metal
cornice.

The 4700 block of North Broadway consists of larger buildings than are found on the 4600
block. On the west side are three buildings that were originally separate buildings but were later
consolidated to form a major department store in the district. These three buildings were constructed
between 1912 and 1915, The middle building. the original Loren Miller & Company store (#40)
shares a party wail with the buildings to the north and south. This five-story building is clad in white
terra cotta and 1s constructed in the Chicago Commercial Style. The building to the south, the
Plymouth Hotel at 4700-4714 North Broadway (#39), is a four-story brick Commercial Style hotel.

The hotel has small terra cotta ornament on the upper floors. The building to the north, Sheridan
[rust and Savings Bank at 4728-4740 North Broadway (#41), is a two story brick building clad in
limestone and is desipned in the Classicat Revival style. The two-story arched window openimgs
have been enclosed in brick

Across the street on the east side ol Broadway are the Uptown Broadway Building (7#20) and
the Uptown National Bank Building (#19). The Uptown Broadway Building, listed on the National
Register individually, is one of the more architecturally elaborate buildings in the district. The brick
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building has an intricately detailed terra cotta facade in the Spanish Baroque style. The 12-story
Uptown National Bank, completely clad in white terra cotta, is designed in the Classical Revival
style and is a commanding landmark at the southeast corner of Lawrence and Broadway. The
remainder of the 4700 block of North Broadway consists of a bank drive-through south of the
Uptown National Bank, which was once a two-story commercial building. Clifton Avenue, which
only runs one block in the district from Lawrence to Broadway behind the Uptown Nationa! Bank,
consists of a parking lot where two-story garage buildings once stood.

The Uptown Broadway and Uptown National Bank Buildings were built in the 1920s and
represent the sccond phase of development in the district. Characteristics of the second phase
include buildings with a larger massing and scale, from three to twelve floors in height. Buildings
from this phase of development are often designed in a particular architectural style, mcluding
Spanish Baroque, Art Deco and Classical Revival. The facades are often claborately ornamented
in terra cotta. These buildings are generally located on or near Lawrence. The one exception in the
district is the Mclunkin Building (#36), which is located at the southwest corner of Wilson and
Broadway.

The 4700 block of North Racine, which converges with Broadway south of Lawrence.
contains three buildings n the district. Beginning at the comer of Lawrence is the Riviera Theater
and Building, 4720-4726 North Racine (#51). This theater and office complex was constructed in
1918 by the famous entertainment architects Rapp & Rapp for the equally famous theater operators
Balaban & Katz. While Rapp & Rapp is given credit for constructing the complex, it is believed that
an earhier unknown architeet designed the facades and began construction before that project went
bankrupt. Just to the north on the 4800 block of North Broadway is another Rapp & Rapp theater,
the Uptown Theatre (#44), also built for Balaban & Katz. The Riviera Theater is the first theater
under the collaboration of Rapp & Rapp and Balaban & Katz, and is smaller than many of their later
buildings. Designed in the French Renaissance style, the theater is constructed of brick with terra
cotta ornament. The Riviera Office Building, which shares a party wall with the theater to the south.
15 also constructed of brick, but was covered with metal panels around the middie of the century.

The 4800 block of North Broadway is a mixture of grand buildings and smaller, automotive-
use buildings. The Green Mill Gardens (#42) on the northwest corner of Broadway and [ awrence
15 o well-known landmark. The two-story brick buiiding was constructed in 1914 and ortgimally
mcluded an outdoor dining and dancing area to the west of the building. An addition to the building
was constructed m 1922 and the gardens were replaced by the Uptown Theatre in 1925 The
commercial building at 4812 North Broadway (#433, between the Green Mill Gardens and the
Uptown Theatre, was constructed in 1925 Construction of the theater entailed the demolition of a
portion ol the Green Mill Gardens, and the 4812 commercial building was constructed in the area
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that remained. Rapp & Rapp designed the facade. The Uptown Theatre, 4814-4816 North
Broadway (#44), listed on the National Register individually, is Spanish Baroque in style and
massive in scale with 4,381 seats. The brick structure wraps around the Green Mill Gardens on the
north and west. The brick structure has an elaborate terra cotta facade on Broadway. North of the
Uptown Theatre is a four-story commercial building at 4824-4826 North Broadway (#45) which was
constructed 1n 1904, but was given a Classical Revival facade in 1925 by Rapp & Rapp. North along
the street are a one-story commercial building clad in concrete block (#46) and the three-story brick
Spiegel Furniture Store, 4840 North Broadway (#47), with a white terra cotta facade. The northem-
most building in the district is the Uptown Branch of the U.S. Post Office, 4850 North Broadway
(#48), a 1939 Art Deco building.

The east side of the block was very auto-oriented, with the Chicago Motor Club at 4833
North Broadway (#14), the Riviera Garage Building at 4829 North Broadway (#15). and the
Goodyear Automotive Building at 4811-4815 North Broadway (#17). The Chicago Motor Club is
a two-story Art Deco style building with a colored stone panel facade. The storefront has been
covered with vertical siding. The Riviera Garage Building is a one-story brick building with ashiar
stone panels above a modified storefront. The North Shore Fireproof Storage Building No. 2, 4821
North Broadway (#16), is a five-story brick building with terra cotta surrounding the first floor
commercial storefront. The building is designed in a restrained Classical Revival style, including
brick pilasters with limestone capitals on the sccond through fourth floors and small windows
characteristic of storage buildings. The Goodyear Automotive Building, constructed in 1969,
replaced a Sinclair gasoline station from 1933, It is a one-story brick building with vertical metal
panels on the facade. The Clancy Building, 4801 North Broadway (#18), sits at the northeast corner
of Lawrence.  This three-story brick building has apartments above commercial storefronts.
Constructed in 1904, the building has a rounded bay, an oriel on the comer, and limestone banding.
The Queen Anne style building is missing its cornice.

The three blocks of Lawrence between the elevated structure and Sheridan Road contain the
majority of large-scale high-rise buildings in the distnict. The 1100 block of West Lawrence includes
the Aragon Ballroom, 1100-1110 West Lawrence (#13), on the north side of the street and the 1105
Lawrence Professional Building, 1101-1113 West Lawrence (#8), on the south side.  Both are
adjacent to the elevated tracks. The Aragon, a three-story brick, terra cotta and stucco building, has
an claborate Spanish Revival fagade that is another important landmark within the district.
Constructed 1926, i has storefronts on Lawrence flankimg the theater entrance. The elaborate
Moorish ornamentation with classical detailing includes raised brick diamond patierns. lerra cotli
serolls and rope moulding, heads and masks, spiral engaged Corinthian plers, coats-of-arms. and iron
balconettes. The stucco in the corner bays and the vertical marquee are not original. The 1105 West
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LLawrence rofessional Building is a three-story brick building clad in dark and light pink terra cotta.
It is designed in the Commercial Style with classical detailing, including spiral rope moulding on
the vertical piers and an elaborate cornice. The building was constructed in 1922,

The next block east contains three buildings from the first phase of residential development
in the district. These buildings arc smaller scale, generally up to three stories, and did not
mcorporate storefronts. On the north side of the street is the Fleur-de-lis Apartments, 1064 West
Lawrence (#12), a three-story apartment building constructed ¢. 1900 of tan and brown brick. The
building is in the Classical Revival style. Architectural elements of the building
include two stone entrance porticos with egg and dart moulding flanked by Ionic columns on bases
supporting a dentillated comice, brick quoins, clongated voussoirs, wide overhanging eaves on
alternating roof lines with metal cornices and brackets, and a cormer turret with a flat, conical roof.
To the east is the Lawrence Apartments, 1058-1060 West Lawrence (#11), which is a three-story
brick Chicago Six Flat with classical detailing. The building, which was constructed ¢. 1900, has
a rusticated stone facade, two three-sided bays on each end of the facade, an entrance portal {lanked
by Tonic columns supporting a dentiliated comice, and a stone cornice with dentillated fricze topped
by a stone parapet. Directly across Lawrence from these two buildings is a small, one-story brick
gas station (#7) surrounded by a parking lot that was constructed ¢. 1955, This gas station is no
longer in use. To the cast on the south side of the street is the Wilton Hotel, 1039-1053 West
Lawrence (#6). This eight-story brick, wood and terra cotta building was designed in the Venetian
Gothic style in 1926. Exceptional architectural elements of the building include terra cotta pointed
archies with recessed coats-of-anms, decorative brick corbelling, and banded brick vouissoirs above
the top floor. On the street level, a brick facade incorporating a serics of lobby windows has
replaced the original nine storefronts and restaurant. Across the street at the northwest corner of
Lawrence and Kenmore 1s the Middlckauf Apartments, 1042-1048 West Lawrence (#10). This four-
story brick apartment building was constructed in 1901 in the Classical Revival style. The building
has a stone base and stone spandrels above the first and fourth floors, two stone portals on Lawrence
with scrolls and egg and dart moulding, two porches on Kenmore with stone capitals and copper
bracketed cornices, seven side bays and onc corner circular bay, and three balconies with iron
rathings. The original bracketed copper cornice has been removed.

The 1000 bleck of West Lawrence contains three buitdings within the district. On the north
side of the street 15 the New Lawrence Hotel, 1020 West Lawrence (#93, which was constructed in
1928 in the Art Deco style. The 12-storv residential building with cammercial storefronts s
constructed of brick, stone, metal and terra cotta. The building s a “U™ shape above the st floor

Uhe intenor back wall of the courtyard has vertical brick piers between the windows topped by terra
cotta modithons of Natve American heads o full dress. The storefront awnings and window
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surrounds have decorative metalwork. The first floor is clad in black marble with zig zag patterns
with metal roscttes. The second floor windows have decorative terra cotta surrounds with floral
motifs, and the third and fourth floor windows have alternating vertical stone surrounds. The south
side of the street includes a one-story brick commercial shopping center constructed in 1987, 1025-
1037 West Lawrence (#5), and the Mutual Insurance Building (#4), at the southwest corner of
Lawrence and Sheridan. The Mutual Insurance Building is an eight-story brick building with a white
terra cotta facade. The lower four floors were constructed in 1922 and the upper floors were added
in 1927, The building is designed in the Classical Revival style and includes two-story terra cotta
surrounds topped by a segmental arch on the second and third floors, with the upper floors divided
by terra cotta piers with Corinthian capitals. A terra cotta parapet is topped by finials above each
pier.

Adjacent to the Mutual Insurance building on the south is the Lakeside Theater, 4730 North
Sheridan (#1), constructed in 1914, The two-story brick theater was designed in the Classical
Revival style, and retains the terra cotta surround on the central arched entry way, terra cotta munning
silis and headers on the second floor, and an elaborate terra cotta parapet and comice with brackets.
The first floor storefronts and theater entrance have been bricked in.

The district includes two buildings on the south side of Lawrence east of Sheridan. On the
southeast corner 1s the Lawrence-Sheridan Apartments, 947-959 West Lawrence (#3), a brick
apartmient building constructed ¢. 1900 with protruding storefronts which were added in 1924, The

Classical Revival style building has four circular bays on Sheridan and two on Lawrence. There is stone
banding between the floors and an overhanging black metal bracketed cornice tops the building.
Directly to the cast is the Peoples Church, 941 West Lawrence (#2), which was constructed in 1926.
This Classical Revival style six-story building has a rusticated stone base topped by a stone {ricze,
and six four-story engaged fluted columns topped by lonic capitals. Above the fifth floor is another
stone frieze with a dentillated stone temple-front entablature. The comers of the building have stone
quoins.

The one structure identified within the district is the elevated rail line (#53), which runs north
and south through the center of the distnet between Broadway, Clifton and Winthrop. The two-story
structure enters the district on the south crossing Wilson just west of Broadway at the Wilson
Avenue Blevated - Uptown Station (#37). The structure consists of steel girder supports and frame.
topped by four rail lines. The station includes three wooden platforms between the tracks with an
unenclosed roof shelterning the central platform. From the Uiptown Station at Wilsen the structure
moves north crossing Broadway, which runs at an angle (o the northwest. then crossing Leland o
the cast of Broadway  North of [eland the structure changes to walled fill. The structure runs
directly north-south between Clifton on the west and an alley on the cast. There is a second station
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at Lawrence, with one wooden platform and unenclosed roof flanked by two tracks on each side.
The structure crosses Lawrence and continues north as walled fill and exits the district boundaries.

Of the 52 buildings and one structure within the district, 44 butldings and one structure are
considered contributing and eight buildings are considered non-contributing. The contributing
buildings were constructed during the period of significance and possess historic integrity through
therr location, design, setting, materials, workmanship and feeling which reflects their character at
that time. The non-contributing buildings within the district were either constructed after 1950 or
do not possess historic integrity. These non-contributing buildings do not have a negative impact
on the character of the district as a whole as they are scattered throughout the district.

The following resource list identifies all of the buildings and one structure within the district.
‘The photographic documentation of the district includes views of many of the buildings.
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Sheridan Road West Side
1. Building/Address: Lakeside Theater / 4730 North Sheridan Road
Date: 1914
Architect: Ralph Cambel Harris
Use (historic/current): Theater and Stores/Social Service
Current Occupant(s): Recently vacated by Columbia College Dance Center
Number of Stories: 2
Materials: Brick and terra cotta
Architectural Style: Classical Revival
Comment: Contributing

Lawrence Avenue South Side from East to West
2. Building/Address: Peoples Church of Chicago 7/ 941 West Lawrence
Date: 1926
Architect: Jerome E.O. Pridmore
Use (historic/current): Church/Church
Current Occupant(s): People’s Church of Chicago
Number of Stories: 6
Materials: Brick and stone
Architectural Style: Classical Revival
Comment: Contributing

3. Building/Address: LLawrence-Sheridan Apartments / 947-959 West Lawrence, 4751-4759
North Sheridan
Date: ¢. 1900 (storefronts added 1924)
Architect: unknown
Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Cominercial-Residential
Current Qccupant(s): S-1. Pantry and others
Number of Stones: 3
Matenals: Brick, stone and metal
Architectural Style: Classical Revival
Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: Mutual Insurance Building / 1001-1015 West Lawrence, 4750-4770
North Sheridan

Date: 1922 / 4-story addition 1927

Architect: Fugard & Knapp / addition by B. Leo Steiff

Use (historic/current): Office/Office

Current Occupant(s): Institute of Cultural Affairs and others

Number of Stories: 8

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Lake Side Plaza / 1025-1037 West Lawrence
Date: 1987

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): None/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Community Mental Health Services and others
Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick

Architectaral Style: Modern

Comment: Non-contributing

Building/Address: Wilton Hotel / 1039-1053 West Lawrence
Date: 1926

Architect: Ralph D. Huszagh & Boyd Hill

Use (historic/current). Residential/Residential

Current QOccupant(s): Lorali Retirement Hotel

Number of Stories: 8

Materials: Brick, wood and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Venetian Gothic

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: Bulk Petroleum Gas Station / 1055-1063 West Lawrence
Date: ¢. 1955

Architect: Unknown

Usc (historic/current): Gasoline Station/Parking

Current Occupant(s): Allright Parking

Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick

Architectural Style: Modern

Comment: Non-contrbuting

Building/Address: 1105 Lawrence Professional Building / 1101-1113 West Lawrence
Date: 1922

Architect: Fredenick Teich

Use (historic/current): Office-Retail/Office-Retail

Current Occupant(s): Aragon Food & Liquors, Chicago Jewelry Exchange and others
Number of Stories: 3

Matenals: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Commercial Style with classical detailing

Comment: Contributing

Lawrence Avenue North Side from East to West

9

Building/Address: New Lawrence Hotel / 1020 West Lawrence

Date: 1928

Architect: Ralph D. Huszagh & Boyd Hill

Use (historic/current): Residential-Commercial/Residential-Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Lawrence House Retirement Hotel

Number of Stories: 12

Matenals: Brick, limestone, metal and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Art Deco

Comment: Contributing,
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Building/Address: Middlekauf Apartments / 1042-1048 West Lawrence, 4800-4808
North Kenmore

Date: 1901

Architect: John S. Woollacott

Use (historic/current): Residential/Residential

Current Occupant(s): Various Residential Occupants

Number of Stories: 4

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Lawrence Apartments / 1058-1060 West Lawrence
Date: ¢. 1900

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Residential/Residential

Current Occupant(s): Various Residential Occupants

Number of Stories: 3 with raised basement

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Chicago Six-Flat with classical detailing
Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Fleur-de-Lis Apartments / 1064 West Lawrence
Date: ¢. 1900

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Residential/Residential

Current Occupant(s): Various Residential Occupants

Number of Stories: 3 with raised basement

Materials: Brick, limestone and metal

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing
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13. Building/Address: Aragon Ballroom / 1100-1110 West Lawrence
Date: 1926
Architect: Ralph D. Huszagh & Boyd Hill, with John Eberson
Use (historic/current): Entertainment/Entertainment
Current Occupani(s): Aragon Entertainment and ABC & Me Daycare
Number of Stories: 3
Materials: Brick and terra cotta
Architectural Style: Spanish Revival (Moorish) with classical detailing
Comment: Contributing

Broadway East Side North to South
14. Building/Address: Chicago Motor Club Building /4833 North Broadway
Date: ¢. 1940
Architect: Unknown
Use (historic/current): Office/Office
Current Occupant(s):
Number of Stories: 2
Materials: Brick with stone panel facade
Architectural Style: Art Deco
Comment: Contributing

15 Building/Address: Riviera Garage Building / 4829 North Broadway
Date: 1916 with alterations in 1940 and 1970

Architect: A. H. Dunford

Use (historic/current): Garage/Restaurant

Current Occupant(s): A-Dong Restaurant

Number of Stories: |

Matenals: Brick

Architectural Style: Modern facade

Comment: Non-contributing
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Building/Address: North Shore Fireproof Storage Building #2 / 4821 North Broadway
Date: 1910 with 2-story addition 1916

Architect: A. H. Dunford

Use (historic/current): Storage-Commercial/Storage-Commerctal

Current Occupant(s): Thailand Food Corp.

Number of Stories: 5

Materials: Brick, limestone and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Automotive Building / 4811-4815 North Broadway
Date: 1969

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): None/Automotive Retail

Current Occupant(s): Goodyear

Number of Stories: |

Materials: Brick

Architectural Style: Modern

Comment: Non-contributing

Building/Address: Clancy Building /4801 North Broadway, 1134-1146 West Lawrence
Date: 1904 with addition ¢. 1948

Architect: Unknown

Use: Residential-Commercial/Residential-Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Charming Wok and others

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: Uptown National Bank Building/ 4753 North Broadway
Date: 1924 with 4-story addition 1928

Architect: Marshall & Fox

Use (historic/current): Office-Commercial/Office-Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Uptown National Bank of Chicago and others
Number of Stories: 12

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Uptown Broadway Building / 4703-4715 North Broadway
Date: 1926

Architect; Walter W. Ahlschlager

Use (historic/current): Office-Commercial/Oftice-Commerciai

Current Occupant(s): Equator Club, African Wonderland Imports and others
Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick, terra cotta and metal

Architectural Style: Spanish Barogue Revival

Comment: Contributing - Individually listed on the National Register

Building/Address: 11. W. Rublofi Building / 4703 North Broadway
Date: 1921

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial

Current Qccupant(s): Majestic Men’s Wear Store

Number of Stories: |

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

OMB No. 1024-0018
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Building/Address: Kresge Building / 4657-4663 North Broadway
Date: 1930

Architect: John Hocke (?)

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Angkor Wat Market, Style House

Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4653 North Broadway

Date: 1901

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Urban Bikes

Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick, terra cotta and limestone
Architectural Style: Classical Revival
Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4647-4651 North Broadway

Date: ¢. 1940

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): 7. Wallis Army & Navy Store, Afrimex International
Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Brick with metal cladding

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: 4645 North Broadway

Date: 1905

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): Beds+ III

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick, limestone, wood and metal

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4643 North Broadway

Date: 1905 with alterations 1930 and rear addition 1936

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): Gigio’s Pizzeria

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

Buitding/Address: 4635-4641 North Broadway

Date: 1905

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): LElim Wig, Shoo-Bazaar, and others

Nunmber of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and limestene

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing,
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Building/Address: 4631 North Broadway

Date: 1948

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial

Current Occupant(s):Two Brothers Store for Men and Boys
Number of Stories: 1

Materials: brick with metal facade

Architectura! Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4629 North Broadway

Date: 1930

Architect: William H. Harlev, Jr. (7}

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Quintrice Hair Studio, Louise African Hair Braiding
Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Art Deco

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4623-4627 North Broadway

Date: 1916

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Dollar Plus+, Trend

Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Glazed brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Commercial Style with Sullivanesque detaling
Comment: Contributing

OMB No. 1024-0018
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Building/Address: 4621 North Broadway

Date: 1902

Architect: Enoch Hill Turnock

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): House Dressing

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style with classical detailing
Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4619 North Broadway

Date: 1907

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): Toppers Records

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: 4613-4617 North Broadway

Date: 1928 with alterations 1974

Architect: Walter W. Ahlschlager

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): FootLocker

Number of Stories: |

Materials: Brick and stucco

Architectural Style: Modern facade

Comment: Non-contributing
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Building/Address: 4601-4611 North Broadway

Date: c. 1965

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): None/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): City Sports, Rainbow Shops and others
Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick

Architectural Style: Modern

Comment: Non-contributing

Wilson Avenue North Side

35.

Building/Address: Wilson Avenue Theater (Standard Vaudeville) / 1050 West Wilson
Date: 1909

Architect: Henry L. Ottenheimer

Use (historic/current): Theater-Commercial/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): TCEF Bank

Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Brick and hmestone

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Broadway Street West Side South to North

36.

Building/Address: McJunkin Building / 4520-4570 North Broadway
Date: 1923

Architect: Marshall & IFox

Use (historic/current): Office-Commercial/Office-Commercial
Current Qccupant(s): Back’s Book Store. 46" Ward Office and others
Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing,
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Building/Address: Wilson Avenue Elevated - Uptown Station / 4600-4620 North
Broadway

Date: 1922

Architect: Arthur U. Gerber

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Transportation/Commercial-Transportation
Current Occupant(s): Chicago Transit Authority station, Popeye’s Chicken, Payless Shoe
Source and others

Number of Stories: 1

Matertals: Terra Cotta

Architectura! Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Barry Building / 4660-4666 North Broadway

Date: 1905

Architect: Ernest J. Ohrenstein

Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Occupant(s): Uptown Snack Shop and others

Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style with classical detailing,
Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Plymouth Hotel / 4700-4714 North Broadway, i136-1148 West
Leland

Date: 1912

Architect: George Kingsley

Use (historic/current): Hotel-Commercial/Vacan

Current Occupant{s): Vacant

Number of Stories: 4

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Commercial Style

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: Loren Miller & Company Store / 4720-4726 North Broadway
Date: 1915

Architect: William L. Klewer

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Vacant

Current Occupant(s): Vacant

Number of Stories: 5

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Commerciat Style

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Sheridan Trust & Savings Bank /4728-4740 North Broadway
Date: 1914

Architect: Harris H. Huehl & Richard G. Schmid

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Vacant

Current Occupant(s): Vacant

Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Limestone and brick

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Green Mill Gardens / 4800-4810 North Broadway

Date: 1914 with addition 1922 and reduction in 1925

architect: C. S. Michaelsen

Use (historic/current): Entertainment-Office-Commercial/Entertainment-Office-
Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Green Mill Cocktail Lounge, U.S. Submarine, and others
Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Commercial Style with classical detailing

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: 4812 North Broadway

Date: 1925

Architect: Cornelius W. Rapp & George L. Rapp
Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Shake Rattle & Read Book Box
Number of Stories: 2

Materials: Terra Cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: Uptown Theatre / 4814-4816 North Broadway

Date: 1925

Architect: Cornelius W. & George L. Rapp

Use (historic/current): Theater/Vacant

Current Qccupant(s): Vacant

Number of Stories: 7

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Spanish Baroque

Comment: Contributing - Individually listed on National Register and Chicago Landmark

Building/Address: North Shore Fireproof Storage Building #! / 4818-4822 North
Broadway

Date: 1994 with addition 1907 and extant facade 1925

Architect: Unknown (Rapp & Rapp designed 1925 facade)

Use (historic/current): Storagc—Commercial/Commcrcial

Current Occupant(s): Broadway Furniturc and others

Number of Stories: 4

Materials: Terra Cotta

Architectural Style: Classicat Revival

Comment: Contributing
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Building/Address: 4824 Broadway Building / 4824-4826 North Broadway
Date: ¢. 1920 with extant facade c. 1970

Architect: Unknown

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial

Current Occupant(s): Indochina Medical and Dental Center and others
Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick and concrete

Architectural Style: Modern

Comment: Non-contributing

Building/Address: Spicgel Furniture Store / 4840 North Broadway

Date: 1920

Architect: B. Leo Steiff

Use (historic/current): Commercial/Vacant

Current Occupant(s): Recently vacated by Heilig-Mevers Fumiture Store
Number of Stories: 3

Materials: Brick and terra cotta

Architectural Style: Classical Revival

Comment: Contributing

Building/Address: U.S. Post Office - Uptown Branch /4850 North Broadway

Date: 1939

Architect: Louis A. Simon (supervising) and Howard Lovewell Cheney (consulting)
Use (historic/current): Post Office/Post Office

Current Occupant(s): U. S. Postal Service

Number of Stories: 1

Materials: Brick and limestone

Architectural Style: Art Deco

Comment: Contributing,

OMB No. 1024-0018



NPS Form 10-900-a
(8-86) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Fark Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section ___ 7  Page _.25

Uptown Square Historic District

Racine Avenue West Side South to North
49. Building/Address: Fox Building / 4734-4736 North Racine
Date: 1911
Architect: Unknown
Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial
Cwrrent Occupant(s): El Condor #2 and vacant storefront
Number of Stories: 1
Materials: Glaze brick
Architectural Style: Commercial Style
Comment: Contributing,

50. Building/Address: Keane Building / 4740-4744 North Racine
Date: 1911
Architect: Unknown
Use (historic/current): Commercial/Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Golden House Restaurant
Number of Stories: 1
Materials: Brick with wood cladding
Architectural Style: Modern facade
Comment: Non-contributing

51. Building/Address: Riviera Theater and Building / 4746-4760 North Racine
Date: 1918 with office building facede added around mid-century
Architect: unknown (completed by Cornelius W. & George L. Rapp)
Use (historic/current): Theater-Office-Commercial/Entertainment-Office-Commercial
Current Occupant(s): Jam Productions, Furniture USA, Genesis Mart and others
Number of Stories: 3
Materials: Brick and terra colta (theater), metal cladding (office building)
Architectural Style:  Classical Revival
Comment: Contributing
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Leland Avenue North Side
52. Building/Address: Monroe Building / 1160-1116 West Leland
Date: 1905 with addition 1922
Architect: Samuel Crowen
Use (historic/current): Commercial-Residential/Commercial-Residential
Current Ocecupant(s): Van’s Nail School, PC Net Technology and others
Number of Stories: 3
Materials: Brick, terra cotta, metal and wood
Architectural Style: Commercial Style
Comment: Contributing

Miscellancous
53. Structure: Elevated Rail Line
Date: 1921
Architect: Unknown
Use (historic/current): Transportation/Transportation
Current Occupant(s): Chicago Transit Authority
Number of Stortes: 2
Materials: Metal, wood, concrete
Architectural Style: N/A
Comment: Contributing
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Uptown Square Historic District is significant under criteria A and C of the National
Register Criteria. The Uptown Square district contains property associated with the broader
historical patterns of entertainment and recreation, commerce, and transportation. This district also
contains property that embodies the distinctive characteristics of various types of architecture,
including Spanish Baroque Revival, Classical Revival and Commercial Style. The district is
representative of the architecture of the early twentieth century and contains various high style
buildings such as theaters, a bank and several three story commercial buildings. Uptown Square
retains most of its original building mass and is representative of the outlying business centers that
cmerged in the carly decades of the twentieth eentury in Chicago. Uptown Square prew rapidiy
between 1900 and 1930 and was widely known as an entertainment and retail corridor until 1950.
The period of significance for this district is 1900-1950. This time period includes two major
phases of construction and reflects the importance of the area as an entertainment and commercial
district.  The two major phases of construction werc1900-1915, which involved smalier scale
buildings, and 1920-1930, which involved larger scale buildings. The period of significance ends
in 1950, By this time, the automobile was widely used for transportation, people were flocking to
the suburbs to live and shop, and the onset of television brought an end to the era of movie palaces.

The following quotation illustrates the character of the neighborhood at its peak as an
entertainment area:

This wide spacious square, where three important streets intersect, is the crossroads
of “Uptown,” where the brilliance of night-time electric incandescence reaches a
glaring climax. Here are the monster, lighted signs of two luxurious motion-picture
theatres which throw a golden glow almost over the entire square and lights up the
white terra cotla fagade of a skyscraper bank building across the street. Near by a
tamous “Uptown” night club attracts the sun dodgers and is a rallying point for the
beau monde of the arca (John Drury, “Byways of the City,” Chicago Daily News.
February 16, 1927).

[n 1915, Loren Miller opened a department store at Leland Avenue and Broadway (#4))
which he called the “Uptown Store.” Miller is credited with bringing the rame Uptown to the
neighborhood (Jakus and Lyden, 1980: 21, His store attracted other independent retatiers into the
Broadway-Lawrence arca. On January 17, 1921, Miller printed the first issue of The Up-Town
Advertiser, a free advertising circalar funded by the advertisements placed by vartous local
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merchants. The paper’s popularity led other arca businessmen to adopt the name “Uptown.” Within
a ycar, the local newspaper The Northside Citizen was renamed the Uprown News, the Wilson
Elevated station (#37) was labeled the “Uptown Station” and a group of local businessmen founded
the Central Uptown Assoctation. The City of Chicago officially recognized the intersection of
Broadway and Lawrence as “Uptown Square” in [930, drawing a parallel with New York City’s
nexus of entertainment, Times Square.

Historical Development

The arca now known as Uptown was a grassy, sandy stretch of land just west of Lake
Michigan until the mid-1800s. This arca was well-traveled by Native Americans, especially along
a path calied the Green Bay Trail, now Clark Street. This tratl provided access from Fort Dearbom
to the Green Bay country. In the decades after the great Chicago fire in 1871, large arcas
surrounding the city began to attract new residents. The horse-drawn omnibus and horse railway had
already permitted development in Lake View Township, incorporated in 1857 and extending north
from Fullerton to Devon and west from the lake to Western (Pacyga & Skerrett, 1986: 87). The
mtroduciion of cable cars, clevated steam railroads and electric surface lines intensified outward
movement. Thus land previously too remote for residential use was brought into the city’s orbit.

The suburb of Lake View, which included today’s Uptown community, experienced rapid
growth in the 1870s and 1880s. Early settlers were predominantly German or of German descent,
although there were also a substantial number of Swedes. Most residents lived in modest frame
cottages or farmhouses. The more claborate residences located along Sheridan Road belonged to
wealthy Chicagoans who sought a suburban lifestyle reasonably close to the city. The Uptown arca
became part of Chicago when the city of Lake View elected to be annexed in 1889 (Local
Community Fact Book, 1995: 20).

In 1872, the Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad laid track through Uptown
connecting the north side with the Union Depot downtown. Streetcars also provided an important
transportation link between Uptown and downtown Chicago. The attached Transportation Chart lists
the various means of transportation and their routes during the period of significance. The most
dramatic growth of Uptown occurred afier 1900 when the Northwestern Elevated Railroad Company
line was extended north to Wilson Avenue. “At this time most of the surrounding area still had a
distinctly rural character. Trainmen recal! having an unobstructed view of nearby Lake Michigan

from the station’s platforms, and cows grazed in the structure’s shadow. By the 19205 the rural
character had completely disappeared, obliterated by the rapid march of urbanization™ (MolTat, 1995:
198

Fhis extension of rail service in 1900 was extremely important to the north side. After the
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cxtension of the elevated, the commercial district along Wilson-Broadway-Lawrence began to
flourish. The extension created a corridor of residential and commercial buildings along the tracks
and developed a solid business and entertainment area at Wilson-Lawrence-Broadway. In 1908, a
local businessman Peter Stohr commissioned Frank Lloyd Wright to design an arcade consisting of
shops and a train station (Gartner, Kazenas and Petersons, 1975: 2). John S. Van Bergen completed
the Stohr Arcade in 1909. This structure was demolished and a second station 1o serve the clevated
trains at Wilson Avenue (#37) was constructed in 1922-23.

When the elevated railroad came to Wilson Avenue at the turn of the century, Uptown began

its career as a transportation nexus and a pleasure resort. The Wilson Avenue and Clarendon Avenuc
beaches were leading destinations for summer outings. “Every cross strect for three quarters of a
mile north and south of Wilson Avenue [led] to a beach” (Chicago Daily Nevos February 18, 1923).
Uptown’s beaches originally attracted pcople to the area as a destination for entertainment and
tecreation. By the early 1920s the Uptown neighborhood was crowded with restaurants, theaters.,
calés, and dance halls. The area became identified with a new lifestyle: hotel living. kitchenette
apartments, single-person houscholds, cafeterias, movies, nightclubs, and shopping.

The Uptown shopping district at Wilson-Broadway-Lawrence offered an alternative to
Chicago’s downtown stores and by the mid-1920s became one of the most important commercial
centers outside the Loop (Pacyga and Skerrett, 1986: 109). Restaurants and cafés, smaller retail
stores, theaters, bakeries, food markets, and pharmacies such as those found in the Wilson-
Broadway-Lawrence area fulfilled the basic needs of the surrounding neighbors, who saw no reason
to travel downtown. The Wilson clevated train station made it simple for peopie to travel to the
district to shop during the daytime and attend nightly concerts and theater shows.

The Uptown Square Historic District had carly origins as a theater and entertainrient district,

Two of the first theaters erected within the Uptown Square Historic District, the Wilson Avenue
Theater (#35) and the Lakeside Theater {(#1). are still standing. The Wilson Avenue Theater at 1050
West Wilson was built in 1909 and operated as a Standard Vaudeville venue. In the carly 1920s,
when grand movie palaces overshadowed more modest theaters, the Wilson Avenue Theater was
converted mnto a bank. It became the first home of the Uptown National Bank, now located at 4753
North Broadway (#19). The Lakeside Theater at 4730 North Sheridan Road was built in 1914, In
recent years, it housed the Columbia College Dance Center.

The Green Milt Gardens nightclub (#42) lies at the heart of Uptown Square. This building.
constructed i 1914, originaliy featured an outdoor seating area, as illustrated in the attached
newspaper advertisement. In 1925 the Uptown Theatre (#44) was built on the site of the outdoor
seating area, but indoor operations continued. The Green Mill prospered as one of the city’s most
popular nightelubs. The attraction of this arca was enhanced by an carlicr prolubition restriction that
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created a dry arca just south and west of Lawrence Avenue (Palmer, 1928). When the 18"
Amendment to the United States Constitution prohibited consumption of alcohol throughout the
United States in 1919, the interscction of Broadway and Lawrence already had an established
reputation for nightlife. Throughout the 1920s newspapers reported on the area as a haven of
entertainment and fast living. “The popular conception of the Wilson Avenue district is that it is a
scction where easy morals prevail, where everybody lives beyond his income and dodpes bill
collectors. ... [f any of the charges against the Wilson Avenue district were substantially true. . the
district would not be what it is today — the loop’s little brother” (Chicago Daily News, May 19,
1923).

The Riviera Theater (#51) was an important attraction in Uptown. In 1917 the investment
tcam Balaban & Katz hired C.W. and George Rapp to design the elaborate French Renaissance
movic palace, which featured over 2000 scats. The Rivicra opened as the largest and most elaborate
theater in the chain and included a thirty-piece orchestra. The Riviera enjoyed great success: 18,000
people visited the theater on a weekly basis in 1918, boosting the numbers of patrons of Uptown
square (Nortiside Sunday Citizen, January 16, 1927). The 1920s dawned as the era of the orand
movie palace. Following the success of the Riviera, Balaban and Katz opened several more movie
palaces in Chicago, including the Tivoli, Chicago, Norshore, Oriental, Paradisc. Southtown,
Nortown. and the crown jewel of their chain, the Uptown Theatre (Davis and Mitchell, 1997). Only
six 10 ten Balaban and Katz movie palaces remain standing in Chicapo, two of which, the Riviera
and the Uptown Theatre, are within the Uptown Squarc Historic District.

In 1925, Balaban and Katz again combined forces with Rapp and Rapp to build the ultimate
movie palace, the Uptown Theatre (#44). They chose a Spanish Baroque style with a terra cotta
facade. Tt cost $4 million to build the Uptown. Until the opening of Radio City Music Hall in 1932,
the Uptown was the largest theater in the United States (Pomaranc, Comimission on Chicago
Landmarks, 1989). The theater featured a five-story lobby including a chandelier, an “acre of seats™
(the actual number was 4,381) and the most expensive Wurlitzer grand organ then built, as well as
a state-of-the-art air conditioning system. By 1927 the Uptown Theatre alone brought over 90,000
people to the neighborhood on a weekly basis (Northside Sunday Citizen, January 16, 1927).

The Aragon Ballroom (#13) was known coast-to-coast as one of “America’s Most Beautiful
Ballrooms™ during the 19205, 19305, and 1940s. In 1926 the architectural finm Huszagh and Hill
destgned the Aragon ballroom in the Spanish Baroque style and constructed it out of brick and tera
cotta. The owners, Willlam and Andrew Karvas, arranged for elaborate décor and strict policies
against alcohol consumption, tor they intended for the Aragon to impress critics and convinee the
public that dancing need not be a “bad ™ thing. The ballroom resembled the courtyard of a Moorish
castle. Palm trees and twinkling Tights in the ceiling gave people the sense of dancing underncath
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the nighttime sky. The all-maple dance floor includes a cushion of cork, felt and springs that absorbs
the vibrations of hundreds of dancing feet. The reputation of the Aragon grew out of its spectacular
ability to enthrone the Big Band era. The ballroom’s embracing sound was played by such
performers as Dick Jurgens, Wayne (The Waltz King) King, Lawrence Welk, Guy Lombardo, Eddy
Howard, Isham Jones, Art Kassel, and Jimmy and Tommy Dorsey.  Tommy Dorsey gave a
Philadelphia kid named Frank Sinatra a break by allowing him to sing at the Aragon.

Transportation improvements between 1900 and the early 1920s helped to solidify the
Uptown Square district’s role as a destination for entertainment and commerce. Bulletin 131 of the
Central Eleetric Railfans’ Association describes the opening of the Lawrence Avenue Station and
refers to the opening of the new station at Wilson:

On the evening of February 27, 1923, a new station was opencd at Lawrence Avenuce
to serve the thriving business and entertainment district there.  Present for the
ceremonies and speech making were company officials, members of the local
businessmen’s association and the elevated’s 40-piece band. That year also saw
the...construction of a large terra cotta clad station at Wilson Avenue (Moftat, 1995:
252).

The new station at Wilson Avenue {(#37) replaced the Stohr Arcade designed by Frank Lloyd
Wright less than 15 years after it was built. The second station, constructed in 1922-1923, was
designed by Arthur U. Gerber in the Beaux Arts style, a combination of Classical and Baroque
influence (Graham Garfield, 1997-9). Where Wright's station had been square and simple, the new
statien built by Stow Building Company was ornate and heavily decorated. 1 exists today with the
major portion of the top facade missing. The new station, called the Uptown Station, displays
pilasters along the side walls and the main entrance, a subdued variation of the frontispiece for Grand
Central Terminal in New York (Jakus and Lyden, 1980: 13).

Even with public transit improvements of the 1920s, Chicagoans became more and more
cnamored with the motor car. In the early 1930s, Lake Shore Drive was extended aiong the north
lakefront to Foster Avenue on landfill that also created additional parkland. Grade separation
cloverleafs, something new in road engineering, provided access and cgress to Lake Shore Drive o
Montrose, Wilson and i awrence Avenues. By 1930, Uptown’s attractions were casily reached b
clevated train, streetear, bus and automobile.

Although ententainment and commerce established Uptown as a destination point outside
Chicago’s Loop. onc of the best known Uptown locations was Dr. Preston Bradley’s Peoples Church
of Chicago (#2). Dr. Bradley and a small group of Chicagoans established the Peoples Progressive




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section _ 8  Page _ 32
Uptown Square Historic District

Church of Chicago in July 1912 according to Dr. Bradley’s biographer, Daniel Ross Chandler, who
served as an assistant pastor of Peoples Church and Dr. Bradley’s understudy. In the fall of 1913,
the congregation moved into “a very large theater outside Chicago’s Loop, the Wilson Avenue
Theater” The congregation moved to the Pantheon Theater on Sheridan Road in 1918 where
services were conducted and Dr. Bradley preached until 1925 (Chandler, 1971: p. 32-33). In 1923,
the Sunday morning worship service was broadcast on the radio, launching what became the oldest
continuous church service broadcast in the United States. Broadcasts continued over WJID and
WOGN until the late 1960s (Chandler, 1971, p. 45).

On June 14, 1925, ground was broken for the new Peoples Church of Chicago. The
dedication of the new building, designed by J.E.O. Pridmore, was on October 10, 1926. The
theatrical heritage of Uptown and of the church’s previous locations was carried into its new home.

Chandler describes the church as “a stately Romanesque playhouse auditorium: the attractive gold
and white color scheme was enhanced by the dark walnut paneling. Modern theater seats arranped
i abbreviated semicircles across the inclined floor seemed dramatic in contrast to the regular, evenly
rowed pews in the traditional churches.” He quotes Ralph Schoenleben, writing in the [iberalist,
September, 1942: . the church resembles a beautiful playhouse. It has an inclined floor. theater
seats instead of pews, and a very large balcony. The choir is banked at the back of a sort of stage.
Dr. Bradley’s ‘pulpit’ is but a simple desk.” Then he concludes, “The theatrical atmosphere
characteristic of motion-picture houses like the Panthcon was extended into the permanent residence
for the Peoples Chureh” (Chandler, 1971: p. 41).

Dr. Bradley’s congregation continued to grow. The Chicago Daily News, June 8, 1940,
reported that the membership numbered 3,431 with an additional radio roli of 8,000. In March 1943,
American Magazine said the Sunday congregation that came to Uptown to worship exceeded 2,200
and the radio audience more than five million (Chandler, 1971, p. 55).

The liberal Protestant clergyman’s reach, through radio and extensive preaching tours
cxtended far beyond Uptown. He was asked in 1935, 1939 and 1955 “to seek the mayorship of
Chicago.” He was a citizen-advisor to the United States delegation at the Charter Convention of the
United Nations. A magniticent room in the Chicago Cultural Center at Washington and Michigan
is named for Dr. Preston Bradley. According to Chandler, “Few institutions in the United States
exceed the Peoples Church of Chicago as the lengthened shadow from one man. Ministering to
fuiman beings congested bencath towering neon-lighted skyscrapers and within tenement-nidden
poverty-stricken ghettos, he served as the people’s pastor™ (Chandler. 1971, p. 61). Peoples Church
stll stands as a dignified presence on Lawrence Avenue and 2 monument to Dr. Preston Bradley.

The congregation is small, but the church opens its doors to house the homeless and provide space
lor a variety ol charitable. social and artistic endeavors.
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The concentration of entertainment and recreation venues combined with the nearby elevated
train stations made Uptown Square a popular and convenient entertainment corridor. At the same
time, Uptown Square was becoming an important commercial district, or “outlying business center.”
A major city such as Chicago has a number of outlying business centers in addition to its central
business district. The outlying business center represented the central business district in miniature.
It possessed a marked concentration with closely spaced retail stores: clothing stores, furniture
stores, shoc stores, jewelry stores, one or more department stores, and a mix of convenience stores.

These centers attracted customers from long distances, and so they developed at focal points of
intra-city transportation (Proudfoot, 1937: 425-428).

The distriet surrounding the Wilson Avenue station sold more cut flowers, candy, cigarettes
and tobacco than in any other section of the Cl[} (Chicago Daily News, May 19, 1923: 12). Wilson
Avenue contained a concentration of men’s clothing stores, with the women’s clothing stores
concentrated on Sheridan Road. The Loren Miller and Company Store, or the “Uptown Store™ as
it was known, opened in 1915 at 4720-4746 North Broadway (#40) and eventually spread to the hotel
and bank buildings flanking it. In 1930, the storc boasted high numbers of accounts from
surrounding northside neighborhoods (Northside Sunday Citizen, January 3 1930). The Uptown
Store was bought by the Goldblatt Brothers in 1931 and remained opcn as a Goldblatt’s until
December 1998.

f:d Marciniak in his book, Reversing Urban Decline, described Uptown in the 1920s:

By the middie 1920's, Uptown had become one of Chicago’s most successiul
business centers. [t boasted two large banks, a handsome office building for doctors,
lawyers and dentists, elegant restaurants and two movie theaters which atiracted well-
dressed crowds day and night. ... Around this dazzling commercial center, hundreds
of three-story apartment buildings sprang up to meet the growing demand for rental
housing.  Elevator apartment hotels of nine storics and more added to the high
density. Uptown became one of the most heavily populated areas in the United
States. Before the ecconomic earthquake of the Great Depression struck in the 1930's.
vacant land in Uptown was almost impossible to find (Marciniak, 1981: p. 11).

Apartment hotels such as the New Lawrence Hetel, 1020 West Lawrence and the Wilton
Hotel, 1039-1053 West Lawrence. offered mexpensive living for singles and young married couples.
Altracted 1o Uptown first by its lakeside Jocation and accessible transportation and later by
entertamment and commerce, an upwardly mobite, young population moved into Uptown’s
apartment hotels. According to Pacyga and Skerrett, “While some young married couples moved
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from apartment hotels into family homes...most did not remain in the area for extended periods.
Thus even before the Depression struck, Uptown was well on its way 1o becoming a transient
district” (Pacyga and Skerrett, 1986: 110).

The lights of Uptown Square continued to bum brightly until the Great Depression struck the
nation. According to Marciniak, “It was a financial shock from which Uptown never recovered,
New housing construction stopped. Purchasing power declined among consumers generally, and the
unemployed in particular. The retail business of local merchants was devastated, as independent
stores in Uptown and elsewhere folded one by one” (Marciniak, 1981: 19).

World War II brought more shockwaves to the arca. “Uptown drew a much different crowd
in 1949 than it did in 1926. Rowdy servicemen on leave from bases near the city surged into the
nciphborhood. At the public transportation stops, particularly the el and train stations, honkey-tonk
Joints brassily competed for attention” (Jakus & Lyden, 1980: 25). Uptown’s small apartments with
cheap rents became handy accommodations for workers in the defense industry who came to
Chicago. Landlords remodeled buildings, breaking up larger apartments into smaller furnished units.
“In an era of gas rationing and wartime cutbacks in auto production, Uptown’s convenicnt
transportation made small apartments a rental bargain” (Marciniak, 1981: 19).

Following World War II, a severe housing shortage prompted even more conversions.
Stagle-family homes and apartment buildings in areas surrounding Uptown Square were cut up into
smaller units and rooming houses. “Largely because of its cheap rents, Uptown became a port of
entry for thousands of Appalachian Whites and American Indians who moved into Chicago during
the 1950s and 1960s. No longer the city's bright-light district, Uptown fell on hard times” (Pacyga
& Skerrett, 1986: p. 111).

Uptown remained a port of entry through the 1960s, 1970s and 1980s for Cubans, Hispanics,
Middle Easterners, Africans, Koreans, Vietnamese, Cambodians and other refugees from Indo-
China. Several small storefronts along Broadway and Wilson Avenues changed hands frequently
or stood vacant. As was happening in many older urban areas in the United States, affluent residents
fled to the suburbs. As television became the entertainment of choice for Americans, theaters and
cntertainment venues struggled to survive.

Fhe Uptown Square Historic: District is significant for its buildings that exemplily
distinetive characteristics of several architectural styles from the pertod of 1900 1o 1950 and
represent the work of prominent architects of the period. There are a total of 23 architects who
designed 32 of the districUs buildings, with the architecets of the remaining 20 buildings unknown.
Most ol these 20 buildings are sinaller and {rom the carlier phase ol development.
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The building types and styles found within the district reflect the point in time at which they
were constructed. Between the early 19" and mid 20" centurics, most commercial buildings were
designed to be seen from the front. The fagade gives commercial architecture its distinctive qualities
and distinguishes one building from the next (Longstreth, 1987: 16-17). The carly phase of
commercial development in the district, from 1900 to 1910, was characterized by buildings with low
massing and scale, one to three stories in height, often without elaborate ormamentation. These
buildings were constructed to the sidewalk, with side walls attached to the adjacent buildings. In the
Uptown Square Historic District, these commercial buildings arc clustered on Broadway near Wilson
and the clevated train station.

A majority of the buildings had commercial storefronts on the first floor with apartments
above. These buildings were mainly brick, and ornamentation inciuded stone lintels and silis,
storefront surrounds of stone or terra cotta, and stone or metal cornices or parapets. The early
commercial buildings were not usually designed in a specific architectural style, but often included
details from a style, such as Classical Revival, 4621 North Broadway (#31), or Suliivancsque, 4623-
4627 North Broadway (#30). Usually the architects of these smaller buiidings were not nationally
recopnized but had smaller [ocal practices. In the Uptown Square Historic District only three of the
buildings on the 4600 block of North Broadway have an identified architect. Enoch il Turnock,
who designed the building at 4621 North Broadway in 1902, was also the architect tor the Brewster
Apartments, a Chicago Landmark located at Diversey and Pine Grove,

The carly phasc of residential development in the district incorporated small apartment
buildings and six flat apartment buildings. The residential buildings were two to four stories in
height and often were designed with specific stylistic elements such as Queen Anne or Classical
Revival. An example is the Middlekaul Apartments (#10), constructed in 1901 and designed by
architect John S. Woollacott. The four-story building was designed in the Classical Revival style,
incorporating such elements as egg and dart moulding, stone capitals and a bracketed comice. Mr,
Woollacott also designed the FFullerton Avenue Presbyterian Church, 600 West Fullerton Parkway.
in 1888 in the Richardsonian Romanesque style, and the Ravenswood Methodist Episcopal Church.
4501 North Hermitage. in 1890 incorporating Romanesque and Sullivanesque elements (Sinkevitch.
1993: 190, 223).

While the building boom of the 1920s had yet wo transform Lawrence Avenue, slightly larger
buildings were constructed north of the elevated tracks in the 4700 block of North Broadway. These
butldings did not erow much in terms of height. but were slightly farger in scale, with three buldings
covering one entire block. The first of these buildings was the Plymouth Hotel (#39). Constracted
in 1912 of dark brown brick, the four-story building employed the Commercial Style of storefronts.
with three upper floors and a parapet. Designed by architect George Kingsley, the building’s
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minimal ornamentation includes decorative brick patterns and green and white terra cotta mouldings.

While Kingley’s restrained design of the Plymouth Hotel reflected the period, his 1923 design of
the Reebie Storage & Moving Company, 2325 North Clark, reflected the growing elaborateness of
fagades in the 1920s, and incorporated inspired terra cotta designs in the Egyptian Revival style
(Sinkevitch, 1993: 188).

The firm of Huehl & Schmid designed the Sheridan Trust & Savings Bank (#41)1n 1914 at
the intersection of Broadway and Racine. While only two stories in height, the building reflects a
determined attempt at Classical Revival style, which was a popular style for financial institutions.
Designed with a limestone fagade, the classical elements of the building include two-story arched
window surrounds divided by engaged stone piers with lonic capitals. A dentillated frieze and
overhanging comice support a two-tiered stone comice. Harris Huehl and Richard Schmid partnered
an architecture firm in Chicago for nearly 20 vears until Huehl’s death in 1918 (Withey and Withey,
1956: 540). Huchl & Schmid were most noted for their work designing Shriner auditoriums. One
of their largest and best preserved is the Medinah Temple, 600 North Wabash, constructed in 1913
with an Arabic motif (Sinkevitch, 1993: 123).

The 1920s constituted the second phase of development in the district. With the building
boom of the 1920s, real estate speculation created the desire for larger buildings. The growing
market of the Loren Miller & Company Store (#40) and the location of the neighborhood near rapid
transportation and Wilson Avenue shopping made Uptown Square a prime location for apartments,
offices, and theater and entertainment facilities. The 1920s saw the proliferation of high-style
building design, with extravagant ornamentation covering taller, wider facades. These larger
buildings, which represented a larger investment by the owner and a more prominent position on the
street, required the expertise of more prominent architects.

One of the most prominent architectural firms to work in the Uptown Square Historic District
was Rapp & Rapp. Comprised of brothers Cornelius Ward Rapp (1861-1927) and Greorge Leshie
Rapp (1878-1942), they designed numerous movice theaters in Chicago and around the country.
Within the district they were responsible for the Riviera Theater and Building (#51). the Liptown
Theatre (#44), the commercial building at 4812 North Broadway (#43), and the facade of the
commereial-office building at 4818-4822 North Broadway (#45). The brothers formed a partnership
i 1906 and soon became known for their movie theater designs. They began work for the Balaban
and Katz chain in 1917 with the Riviera Theater, and went on 10 create a number of movie palaces
tn Chicago (Withey and Withey, 1956: 497). The firm continued its association when the circuit
merged with Paramount-Publix Theaters in 1925, expanding their practice nationwide. Rapp &
Rapp designed over 400 theaters, the majority of them during the 1920s. Rapp & Rapp were among
the most important and influential American theater architects of the period (Levin and Longstreth,
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1982: 532).

The Rapps introduced with the Riviera and continued with the Uptown what was to become
a familiar theme in building design in Uptown Square in the 1920s, exuberant and elaborately
decorative building facades. French Renaissance, Spanish Baroque, and Classical Revival were all
incorporated in buildings by the Rapps in Uptown Square. Following the introduction of the French
Renaissance-designed Rivicra Theater, another prominent Chicago architecture firm designed an
elaborately ornamented office building at the southwest corner of Sheridan and Lawrence. The
Mutual Insurance Building (#4), was constructed in 1922 and designed by the firm of Fugard &
Knapp. At four stories and clad in white terra cotla, the prominent location on the corner made this
Classical Revival building a gleaming example of what was to come. The firm of Fugard & Knapp
was alrcady well-versed in classical butlding design, having designed 219 ast Lake Shore Drive in
1919 and 229 East Lake Shore Drive in 1922 in what is now the East Lake Shore Drive Local
Historie District. The firm would eventually complete the Mayfair Regent Hotel, 181 East Lake
Shore Drive, in 1924, making them the designers of half the buildings in that historic district
{Smkevitch, 1993: 111).

Marshall & I'ox were probably the best known and most respected of the commercial and
residential architecture {irms to work in Uptown Square during the 1920s. Both of the firm’s
Uptown Square buildings are massive brick buildings with elaborate Classical Revival white terra
cotta facades, continuing in the theme of exuberantly designed high-style architecture. These are the
McJunkin Building (#306), built in 1923, and the original eight stories of the Uptown National Bank
Building (#19), built in 1924, In 1928 the finn of Huszagh & Hill completed the anticipated four-
story addition to the Uptown Bank Building.

Comprised of partners Benjamin H. Marshall (1874-1945) and Charles 2. Fox (1870-1926).
this leading architectural firm had gained a reputation for elegant and claborate designs, most of
which were built in the Gold Coast section of Chicago. Marshall went on to design several
important buildings following Fox’s death in 1926, including the Drake Tower Apartments, 179 East
[ake Shore Drive, 1929, and the Edgewater Beach Apartments (Withey and Withey, 1956: 392-393).
The firm’s impressive list of designs include the Blackstone Hotel and Theater at 636 South
Michigan, 1908-1910; the Chicago, Burlington & Quincy Railroad headquarters at 547 West
Tackson, 1911; the Drake Hotel at 140 fast Walton Street, 1920; 1550 North State Parkway, 1912
and the other half of the Isast Lake Shore Drive Local Historie District (Sinkeviteh, 1993: 94 111,
41, 165).

The fourth architect to continue the theme of omately designed high-style buildings in the
Uptown Square Historic District was Walter W. Ahlschlager. Alrcady well-known in Uptown for
his design of the Sheridan Plaza Hotel at the northeast corner of Wilson and Sheridan in 1919,
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Allschlager incorporated monumental engaged columins and fluted piers, spiral tema cotia columns,
terra cotla floral patterns, ram’s heads, ums, mectal cresting and diamond leaded glass into the
Spanish Baroque design of the Uptown Broadway Building (#20). He is also credited with designing
the Medinah Athletic Club, now the Hotel Inter-Continental, 505 North Michigan Avenue, 1929, in
a nco-Egyptian style (Sinkevitch, 1993: 103).

The range of architectural styles employed in the Uptown Square Historic District reflects
the range of early 20™ century development from 1900 to 1950. Of the 52 buildings in the district,
17 were designed in the Commercial Style and 18 were designed in the Classical Revival style.
These two styles alone represent half of the buildings in the district. Of the remaining buildings,
cight are considered of contemporary design, or rather they are modern buildings or facades which
portray no particular style.  The following chart indicates the architectural styles of the 44
contributing buildings in the district:

Architectural Style | No. of Architectural Style | No. of
Buildings | Buildings

Commercial Style 17 Chicago Six-Flat |

Classical Revival [ _Spanish-Moorish 1

Art Deco 4 Venetian Gothic 1

Spanish Baroque 2

Classicism usually refers to a revival of the principles of ancient Greek and Roman
architecture. In the 19" century there was a full-scale classical revival that took many different forms
but which kept a common feeling of identity and direction (Koeper and Whiffen, 1983: 3). The
classical revival was first introduced in America during the 18" century by Thomas Jefferson with
his State Capitol in Richmond, Virginia. The style reflected a symbol of the new government in the
New World, which was patterned on the Roman Republic (Koeper and Whiffen, 1983: 5). The
classical style of architecture came to be associated with civie, industrial and financial institutions.
relaying a sense of longevity, importance and justice. While the 19" century buildings were oficn
freestanding, rephicating form and style of the ancient architecture, buildings in the 20" century
modified the style o the form and function of the bulding. Ay the classical revival became an
accepted form of butlding desiga, even the smallest facade would incorporate classical detahing o
add identity and status to the building. The range of classical facades 1s varied i the district, {rom
the modified temple front of the Peoples Church (#2) to the ornate terra cotta-clad Uptown Natonai
Bank Building (#19) Classical Revival flourished throughout the United States in the carly 20"
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century.

While the Classical Revival style is the most dominant of the high styles found in the district,
the Commereial Style ranks as the most common building style. The Commercial Style is the result
of increased specialization in building facades towards the creation of commercial storefronts along
a strect.  More a building type than a style, Commercial Style buildings include one or more
storefronts, upper {loors containing offices or apartments, topped by a parapet or cornice. Examples
include the three buildings from 4635 to 4645 North Broadway (#25, #26, #27). These buildings
often incorporated details from other styles as ornamentation. In the Uptown Square Historic
District, classical detailing is the most prominent, as is found on buildings such as the 1105
Lawrence Professional Building (#8).

The Art Deco style became popular and took its name from the Paris Exposition
Internationale des Arts Decoratifs et Industriels Modemes in 1925 (Koeper and Whiffen, 1983 326).
The style spread rapidly to America and can be found in every city and many small towns around the
country.  Although & more streamlined version of Art Deco known as Moderne was a popular
replacement after 1930, the Art Deco style remained popular into the 1940s. There arc four
buildings in the Uptown Square Historic District in the Art Deco style. The New Lawrence Hotel
(#9) 1s an excellent example of the use of Art Deco in the 1920s. Constructed in 1928, the building
incorporates elements common in the Art Deco style, including a linear design with a vertical
emphasis, a courtyard or “U” shape above the first floor emphasizing the geometric form, strips of
windows with decorated spandrels, low-relief omamentation around door and window openings, and
the use of metal and terra cotta in the ornamental detailing (Blumenson, 1981: 7.

The increase of building mass and scale in the 1920s communicated Uptown Square’s status
as a major outlying business center in Chicago. The larger commercial buildings and entertainment
facilities expressed the exuberance of a vibrant entertainment district with claborate decorative
tacades and the creative use of terra cotta.

Neighborhood Comparison

In his 1937 thesis, Malcolm Proudfoot identified twenty major outlying business centers in
the Chicago of the early 1930s. He did not publish the boundarics of these centers but explained in
detait how they were delineated. "Major" meant at least one mile of business frontage. combining
the frontage of all stories. For example, two-story business butldings extending on bath sides of the
street i four directions for a radius of one-sixteenth mile would measure o mile in Proudfoot’s
analysis (Proudfoot, 1937).

Broadway-Wilson was one of his major centers. and it ranked third from the top with 3.20
miles of business frontage. There are five centers with over three miles: Halsted-Roosevelt 4.03,
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63rd-Cottage Grove 3.38, Broadway-Wilson 3.20, 63rd-Halsted 3.12, and Lincoln-Belmont-Ashland
3.10. Prouvdfoot included Lawrence-Sheridan and Broadway-Sheridan (-Montrose) as minor centers.
which reflects the unusual extent of the Uptown concentration; only one other major center, 47th-
South Park, had a minor center within a half mile, and no other had two. Although Proudfoot's
boundaries for the Broadway-Wilson center would not exactly match with the Uptown Square
Historic District boundaries, they contained most of the same major buildings and can be used for
comparisons. Proudfoot found that of his twenty major centers, Broadway-Wilson ranked third in
size, first in elevated car traffic, first in "motor coach traffic," (i.e., first-class busses), above average
in land value, and above average in vehicle traffic,

Historic land values in Chicago were thoroughly documented by Homer Hoyt in his 1933
book, One Hundred Years of Land Values in Chicago, 1830-1933. His analysis includes a section
on outlying business centers. Land prices on outlying business corners doubled between 1910 and
1915, then after a pause, tripled between 1921 and 1928, "Not only did an increasc of poputation
of one mitlion [in these areas] furnish added consumer purchasing for local stores, but a number of
factors tended to divert mueh of this shopping away from the Loop to these community centers”
(Hoyt 1933: 249). These factors included the growth of outlying banks, department stores, and "the
new palatial motion-picture houses.” Uptown Square had a large twelve-story bank, a prominent
department store, and two palatial motion-picture houses.

The attached Chicago map taken from Hovt {1933: 254, Figure 40) shows that in 1928 three
Uptown corners—Broadway-Lawrence, Broadway-Wilson, and Wilson-Sheridan —were atl in the
highest rank ($5,000-10,000 per front foot) and Lawrence-Sheridan was in the second rank ($2,500-
4.999) citywide. Of the eleven centers with property vatues exceeding $5,000 per front foot in 1928,
three were in Uptown. Nowhere else outside the centrat city were two first-rank centers found less
than a half-mile apart.

In the 1930s all the major centers had at lcast one large motion-picture theater; some had
several. The concentration of entertainment facilities in Uptown rivaled that of the other outlying
centers and included the Aragon Baliroom (#13). Uptown Theatre (#44), Riviera Theater (#51).
[akeside Theater (#1), Green Mill Gardens (#42), and the Pantheon Theater. All remain but the
Pantheon, which stood outside the historic district boundaries. Of the five largest outlying centers
in Proudioot's study, alt had at least one theater with more than 3000 seats, but most of these have
nat survived.

A driving tour of 15 or 20 major outlying business centers shows that almost all of them have
lost many of their farpest and most characteristic business butldings. Madison-Pulaski (formerly
Crawford) retains the five-story Walgreens building, the cight-story Garfield Bank building and two
large residential buildings, the Guyon Hotel and the Midwest Athletic Club. The Madison-Pulaski
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district had two major motion picture theaters, the Marbro and the Paradise, but both have been
demolished.  The Lincoln-Belmont-Ashland district retains the Wicholdt’s Department Store
building and another narrow six-story department store. The Belmont Theater was adapted for
residential use, retaining the historic facade. The other major centers have suffered extensive
demolition. The Tivoli near 63-Cottage Grove and the Southtown near 63"-Halsted arc among the
losses to demolition.

Uptown Square Historic District is unique in retaining all the major buildings within its
boundaries. The two major motion picture theaters, the Uptown and the Riviera, are stil] standing
in the Uptown Square Historic District, with good phystcal integrity on the exterior. The Uptown
Square Historic District also retains the Aragon Baliroom, the Green Mili, the McJunkin, Mutual
Insurance, and Uptown National Bank Buildings, all of which contributed significantly to the
original character of the district. Thus the Uptown Square Historic District with all its major
buildings standing is among the best surviving examples of the outlying business centers of early 20"
century Chicago.

Walking through the district, changes and gaps in the historic fabric are visible. But it would
be an illusion to believe that at one time the district was fully buiit and physically stable. The real
estate booms of 1910-1915 and 1920-1930 brought extensive demolition: and redevelopment, The
district developed so rapidly that in the early 1920s, buildings less than ten years old were being torn
down to build “bigger and more modern buildings on the same sites™ (Chicago Daily News, February
I8, 1922). There was always a building project under way. The tall apartment buildings on
Lawrence replaced walk-up apartments. The Uptown National Bank Building (#19) was built first
to cight stories in 1924, then pushed up to twelve stories just four years later. At the northeast corner
of Lawrence and Broadway a twenty-five-story building was announced, but the project never broke
ground (Northside Sunday Citizen, January 16, 1927).  Though there have been some regrettable
losses to demolition in Uptown Square, what remains is an ensemble of exceptional interest with
substantial integrity by any comparative standard.

From the early 1900s with its transportation boom, through the glory days tn the 19205 and
carly 1930s, to harder times during the Great Depression. World War 11 and the post-war vears,
Uptown Square has stood largely intact, too monumental to ignore and, some thought, too expensive
to restore. Its most impressive structures, including the Uptown Theatre, the Aragon, and the
Uptown Bank Building, are a testimonial to another era. Its vacunt and deterorated buildings,
weluding Loren Miller’s store and the rest of the Goldblatts complex (#39-41), the majestic Uptown
Fheatre (#44), the Spicgel Furniture Store bullding (#47), and the lavishly decorated Uptown-
Broadway Building (#20) wait 1o once again become a developer™s dream.
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Uptown Square is no museur however, Bright lights and entertainment still draw the crowds
to Uptown Square. Jazz fans flock to the Green Mill. The Aragon and the Rivera fill with fans of
popular music groups, today the Smashing Pumpkins rather than Tommy Dorsey. The Uptown
Theatre often serves as a popular movie filming location. Backdraft, Toy Story, and recently High
Fidelity included scenes shot in the Uptown. The busy and thriving Uptown National Bank graces
the corner of Lawrence and Broadway. In the carly twentieth century, transportation access, a
booming economy, rapid residential and commercial development, entertainment venues, and
recreation shaped Uptown Square. Those elements still exist today and offer renewed opportunities
for restoring some of Uptown Square’s magnificent buildings.
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Boundary Description

The Uptown Square Historic District’s boundaries include the northwest corner of Gunnison
and Broadway, the east and west sides of Broadway from Gunnison on the north to Wilson on the
south, the southwest corner of Wilson and Broadway, the one building on the north side of Wilson
cast of Broadway, the north side of Leland between Broadway and Winthrop, the north and south
sides of Lawrence from Magnolia to Sheridan, the first building on the west side of Sheridan south
of Lawrence, the two buildings east of Sheridan on the south side of Lawrence, and the three

buildings on the west side of Racine south of Lawrence. The boundaries incorporate approximately
15 blocks.

Boundary Justification

The boundaries of the Uptown Square Historie District have been drawn to include the most
cohesive collection of buildings which relate together through use, architectural style, pattern of
development, and date of construction. To the north along Broadway are low-scale commercial
buildings that do not reflect their historic integrity including a modern public library and a strip
shopping center constructed in the mid-1990s.

To the west along the north side of Lawrence are a parking lot and the St. Boniface
Cemetery. To the west of the district and south of Lawrence are lew-scale residential buildings
dating from the late 19" and early 20" centuries. These buiidings are within the boundaries of the
Sheridan Park Historic District, listed on the National Register in 1985, To the south along Racine
are the Darlington Iotel, 1910, and the Darlinglon Apartments, 1909, two low-rise apartment
buildings. To the west along Leland are St. Simons Church and Parish House dating from 1905, and
the [eland Hotel, a larger apartment building constructed in 1926. All of these buildings are located
within the boundaries of the Sheridan Park Historic District.

To the west along the north side of Wilson are several low-risc commercial buildings and a
four-story apartment building, which do not possess sufficient historic integrity to reflect the period
of significance. There is a modern fire station at the northwest corner of Racine and Wilson. Along
the south side of Wilson 15 the Harry S. Truman City College of Chicago, a modern glass and steel
two-story building which consists of an entire city block.

To the south of the southern boundary of the district along the west side of Broadway is a
parking lot and a modern supermarket building. To the south along the cast side of Broadway are
several modern commercial buildings, including a strip shopping center and 2 hank.

To the east of the boundary along the north and south sides of Wilson are several parking
lots, a modern commercial building, and a McDonald’s restaurant, followed by the Sheridan Plaza
Hotel, listed on the National Register individually, at the northeast comer of Wilson and Sheridan.
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The historic fabric of the district no longer extends far enough along Wilson to include the Sheridan
Plaza Hotel. To the west along Leland are two vacant lots and a modemn apartment building.

To the north and south of Lawrence along Winthrop and Kenmore are low-rise apartment
buildings and single-family homes dating from the late 19" and early 20" centuries, These buildings
are interspersed with vacant lots.

To the west along the north side of Lawrence arc a modern strip shopping center at the
northwest corner of Lawrence and Sheridan, and a modern high-rise apartment building and parking
lot cast of Sheridan. To the east of the boundary along the south side of Lawrence are several low-
rise apartment buildings, some of which arc modern and some which date from the carly 20"
century. To the south of the boundary along the east and west sides of Sheridan is a mixture of two-
story commercial buildings dating from the carly 20" century, modem commercial buildings, parking
lots and vacant lots.
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Transportation Chart

YEAR LINE TYPE ROUTE
1855 Northwestern Railway (now Chicago & | Rail Nerth-South 12 trains per day
Northwestern)
1872 Chicago, Milwaukec & St. Paul Rail North-South to Union Depot downtown
1892 Chicago North Shore Street Railway Street car North-South
Company Evanston Avenue (Broadway) to Diversey
1866 Chicago North Shore Street Railway Street car North-South
Company Clark Street line extended to Devon Ave.
1896 Chicago North Shore Street Railway Street car East-West
Company Lawrence Avenue line began from
Evanston Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue
1600 Northwestern Elevated Railroad Elevated Rail | North-South
Company Line extended north to Wilson Avenue
1907 Northwestern Elevated Railroad Elevated Rail | North-South
Company (street fevel) Elevated tracks electriticd
1908 Northwestern Elevated Raiiroad t:levated Rail | North-South
Company {street level) Line extended to Central Street in
Evanston
1913 Kenwood-Wilson Express Ratl North-South
Line ran from Wilson to Kenwood on the
south side. Service closed in 1949,
1919 Lake Blufl Railway (later Chicago, Rail North-South
North Shore & Milwaukee line) Line ran from Miiwaukee, W/ o South
Side, stopping at Wilson,
1921 Northwestern Elevated Railread Flevated Rail | North-South
Caompany Tracks north of Wilson were elevated
1921 Chicago, Evanston & [.ake Shore Rail North-South
Closed service between Howard and
Wilson
1923 Chicago Transit Authority (forerunner) | Elevated Rail | Existing Uptown Station at Wilson and
Lawrence Avenue station constructed
1928 Lake Shore Drive Highway North-South

Road extended nerth 1o Lawrence Avenue
with exits at Montrose, Wilson and
l.awrence
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